
RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Dear Mick, 

RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6) 
Sunday, 9 May 2021 11 :07 PM 
michael.neaton@qed.qld.gov.au 
EMR for CapSDE 
EMR.docx 

Thanks for your time last week. Please find attached EMR for CapSDE. 

Please let me know if you require any additional information. 

Kind regards, 
Amanda Rynne 
Principal 
Capricornia School of Distance Education 

241-259 Farm Street, Kawana QLD 4701 
T: (07)4931 4843 @ Rockhampton Campus 
T: (07) 4987 9112 @ Emerald Campus 

Mobile

Capricornia School of Distance Education 
241-259 Farm Street , Kawana QLD 4701 T: (07)4931 4843 I F: 07 4931 4899 E: arynn6@eq.edu.au 

W: https://capricorniasde.eq.edu.au/ 

~ 
CAPRICORNIA 

This message (including attachments) is intended for the addressee named above. It may also be confidential, privileged and/or subject to copyright. If you wish 
to forward this message to others, you must first obtain the permission of the author. If you are not the addressee named above, you must not disseminate, 
copy, communicate or otherwise use or take any action in reliance on this message. You understand that any privilege or confidentiality attached to this 
message is not waived, lost or destroyed because you have received this message in error. If you have received this message m error please not ify the sender 
and delete from any computer. Unless explicitly attributed, the opinions expressed m this message do not necessarily represent the official position or opinions 
of the State of Queensland or the Department of Education and the Arts. Whilst all care has been taken, the Department of Education and the Arts disclaims all 
liability for loss or damage to person or property arising from this message being infected by computer virus or other contamination. 
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2021 EMERGENT MINIMUM 
REQUIREMENT APPLICATION 
Principal to complete 

Region Central Queensland Region 

School Name Capricornia School of Distance Education 

Enrolment History and Forecast Data 

Please provide enrolment history for 2019, February enrolment for 2020, current enrolments, and February 
enrolment forecasts for 2021 and 2022. 

YEAR LEVEL 2019 2020 CURRENT 2021 Day 8 2022 

Prep 

Year 1 

Year 2 

Year 3 

Year 4 

Year 5 

Year6 

Total Primary 675.9 720.8 928.2 928.4 1000 

Year7 

Year 8 

Year 9 

Year10 

Year11 

Year12 

Total Secondary 537.4 768 795 788 810 

TOT AL SCHOOL 1213.3 1488.8 1723.2 1716.4 1810 

Head Count Forecast 3267 3553 4735 4717 4850 

Prep classrooms currently available I N/A Non-Prep classrooms currently available l N/A 

Additional accommodation requested YES 

For special education applications, provide a list of enrolled students, including Quartile Data 

EMP in place? NO Since? Out of catchment enrolments (nos. in current year): 

Queensland 
Government RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 2 of 37
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Department of Education and Training 

Principal's Signature, ~ &n.rt/; 
Date 09/05/2021 

Infrastructure Advisor (IA) to complete 

Prep Classrooms available (as per MyFacilities) N/A 

Non-Prep Classrooms available (as per MyFacilities) N/A 

Enrolment Capacity (as per MyFacilities) N/A 

Shortfall has been identified YES 

Infrastructure Advisor has visited the site YES 

Proposed Solution 

Supply furniture kit only (non - building solution) NO 

Refurbish existing facility NO 

Additional accommodation required YES 

Is this a Prep application (Identify extension to existing Prep if applicable) NO 

Provide justification to support application and details of proposed solution (If region can relocate a building, 

indicate source location and whether agreed with school principal) 
Proposal is to site two new modified demountable buildings (4 spaces) at Glenmore SHS, this would provide a 

temporary solution to the facility shortfall problem. W ith the continued growth over the last few years has placed 

the school on the back foot to cater for growing enrolments and staff numbers. 

Capricornia School of Distance Education has allocated $2,500,000 towards future capital works in the 2021 /2022 

budget to assist with the facility shortfalls. This will require the installation of additional staff preparation / work 

spaces, interactive eTeaching spaces for individuals, small groups and clustering for class and year groups are 

requested. In addition, meeting room/staff room and administrative facilities will address facility shortages. 

Additional staff toilets are required to meet BCA requirements. A master plan of this facility is requested to assis1 

with future SOE site planning and building typology. 

Current staff numbers at the Rockhampton Campus are as follows: 126 + 10 vacancies (136 total) 

Current Teacher/TA/Admin prep areas: 115 desks 

Current Teacher/TA Admin prep shortfall: 21 desks 

Current Teacher studio spaces: 16 studios (12 studios available to share across all Rockhampton 

teachers/teacher aides) the remainder of lessons are at teacher desks causing noise issues and disruptions to 

learning for students. 

Current studios being used as teacher I admin desks: 4 

Staff vacancies : approximate ly 10 (7 teachers/1 teacher aide/2 admins). 

Predicted teacher numbers: to increase by approx. 10 in 2022 .~ 
-~ 
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Department of Education and Training 

Site Specific Information (Provide detailed information as applicable, including Site Facilities Map) 

Does the site have space 
to accommodate an No (Glenmore SS) 
additional building 

Yes - All three Principals at the Glenmore Precinct have agreed in principle on a 

preferred site for Capricornia School of Distance Education to expand. This identified 
Has a potential location 
been identified and site will assist to address some of the facility shortfalls. Location of the two new Modula1 

agreed with the principal Buildings is behind the Glenmore High School pool on the old basketball courts. 

Are there any known site 
access issues 

Are there any location 
specific issues 

The siting proposal for these buildings is in close vicinity to the CSDE existing pit for 
internet and telecommunications. It is important that any future builds factor into the 
plan evolving pedagogies and future teaching technologies, data and communication 
needs so the School of Distance Education can continue to deliver lessons using the 
latest technologies. 

Staff car parking, off street car parking and traffic congestion are site specific issues 
that are being discussed with the Dept Transport & Main Roads, QBuild, DOE, 
Rockhampton Regional Council and local politicians. It is clear that the continuous 
growth of the school has put additional pressure on current infrastructure. 

9-ueenslan~ RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 4 of 37
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Comments / History -

Department of Education and Training 

In 2018 a review by Williams Architects in relation to future school buildings and 

eaching spaces for Schools of Distance Education was commissioned by the 

Department of Education. This report was provided to assist planning for future SOE 

!development. Three years on and Schools of Distance Education continue to be 

assessed for facility needs on the same design brief being utilised by mainstream da~ 

!schools. The functional requirements of a School of Distance Education that services a 

range of enrolment categories is very different and despite our enrolment growth SODE 

are still assessed on the same scale as a mainstream school. 

The Rockhampton Campus services P-12 students including all of our enrolled 

!Secondary School based and language students. The relocation of any staff to Emerald 

Campus would add another complexity to the supervision by the Administration Team. 

Relocation of one sector of the school to another location in Rockhampton has also 

been explored. To undertake this task would require a fourth location code adding to 

lthe already complex nature of finance, facilities and staff supervision. Additional 

locations explored have included Park Avenue SS, TAFE building Yeppoon, CQU 

Canning Street and Main Campus, North Street Annexe including the vacant block o 

land next to the Annexe and the PCYC Yeppoon Recreational Centre. None of these 

Wacilities were suitable for the delivery of Distance Education. 

Currently students attending Mini-school in Years 5 and 6 are schooled offsite at the 

Dreamtime Centre due to insufficient classroom space at CSDE. Additionally, students 

who attend Mini-school in both Primary and Secondary are spread across Glenmore 

Primary and High classrooms which causes disruption for not only for the host schools 

but also many of our students experience anxiety having to walk onto an unknown 

school site. Many of these students are dealing with phobias and anxiety from a range 

bf issues. This is one of the reasons why many left mainstream schools. Teachers 

working with students at other temporary locations are disadvantaged as they do no1 

have access to their resources nor access to the necessary technology required to 

interact with students who are not only working with them but some of whom are also 

still working from the home environment. 
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Department of Education and Training 

Services Infrastructure (Provide details of known capacity of services to accept additional infrastructure, photo of the 
Centre of Network cabinet and switches if an additional building is the proposed solution) 

Electrical and Security TBC 

Telephone TBC 

Data/ Wireless TBC 

Fire TBC 

Water TBC 

IA's Signature: 

p4L/._ 
Date 10/05/2021 

IM's Signature: Date 
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2018/19 EMERGENT MINIMUM REQUIREMENT APPLICATION 

Principal to complete 

Region Central Queensland Region 

School Name Capricornia School of Distance Education - Rockhampton Campus 

Please provide enrolment history and forecast data on page two of this application 

Prep Classrooms available for 2017 N/A 

Non Prep Classrooms available for 2018 1 
·········· ····· ··············· ····· ··· 

!Additional Accommodation Requested Yes 
Principal's Signature 

Infrastructure Advisor to complete 

Prep Classrooms available (as per CWPS) Additional teacher spaces required. 

Non Prep Classrooms available (as per CWPS) 

Enrolment Capacity (as per CWPS) 

Shortfall Yes 

!Additional Accommodation Required Yes 

Is this a Prep Application No 

Are there any site access a) Space for additional buildings is a concern. I believe that the best 
issues? solution would be to remove the two old demountable building at 
(incl. Qualitative information) the Glenmore Primary School and replace them with two new 

demountable buildings in a configuration that would meet out 
immediate needs. 

b) Alternatively two new replacement demountable buildings could 
be offered in exchange for Glenmore Primary School's "C" block. 
This would be our oreferred solution. 

Are there any location specific 
issues: 
(e.g. ale, costing , BPI) 

• Administration and Teaching spaces (10) required . 

• Need additional toilets and staffroom space . 

• We require office space for an additional 20 teaching staff, a 
school nurse and Chaplaincy services and other support 
services. 

• The following staff we have not yet appointed due to space : 

□ 1 x Youth Support Worker 

□ 2 X A02 

□ 2 X TA004 

□ 11 teachers 

□ 3 HoDs 

□ 10 additional teachers in 2019 in response to enrolment growth 

□ 1 x Chaplain 

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 7 of 37

R
el

ea
se

d 
un

de
r R

TI
 A

ct
 b

y 
D

oE



lA.re there any other issues; 
(e.g. Electricity, security, 
~elephone) 

Recommended solution: 
(If the region can relocate a 
building indicate source 
location and whether agreed 
with school principal) 

Comments: 

2 

c) Space for additional buildings is a concern. I believe that the best 
solution would be to remove the two old demountable building at 
the Glenmore Primary School and replace them with two new 
demountable buildings in a configuration that would meet out 
immediate needs. 

• Alternatively two new replacement demountable buildings could 
be offered in exchange for Glenmore Primary School's "C" block. 
This would be our preferred solution. 

Please provide any relevant comments. 

Application is for the provision to allow for the additional 23 staff as part of the staffing model, with further 
growth in early 2019. 

Application will be required to be supported with furniture allocations for staff and also the provision of 
internal partitioning screens, tele[hone and data services as well as specific teaching spaces for teachers 
to provide virtual lessons using the most recent technologies. 

Enrolment History and Forecast Data 
Principal to complete 
Please provide February enrolment history for 2015 to 2018, current enrolments, and 
Februarv enrolment forecasts for 2017 and 2018 

2018 2018 2019* 
Year Level 2015 2016 2017 (Day 8) (Current) (forecast) 

Total Primary 240 292 363 
376.4 

403.6 550 

Total 171 270 363 435.4 488.1 550 
Secondary 

Total School 411 562 726 811 .8 891.7 1100 

Head Count 1539.8 1652 2300 
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3 

Headcount numbers 

Total 
Total teachers Staffing MyHR teachers (94) (114)all FTE/Headcount all staff 115 

staff 130 

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 9 of 37

R
el

ea
se

d 
un

de
r R

TI
 A

ct
 b

y 
D

oE



RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 

BIELENBERG, Ian (ibiel1) 
Wednesday, 6 February 2019 1 :44 PM 
'MCMILLAN, Bill' 

Cc: Craiglea Schoolroom; Dan Coxen (ffncq@qtu.asn.au) 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Application for Site Approval for Fleetwood Demountable Classroon 
06022019141242.pdf; Application for Site Approval for Fleetwood Demountable.pdf 

Good Afternoon Bill, 
I would like to resubmit our application for site approval to place a Fleetwood Demountable Classroom down behind 
Glenmore State Schools "S" Block. In addition I would like to include in this application site approval for the 
provision of a path connecting the bottom Glenmore Car Park with the stairs at the rear of "K" Block. 

These proposals have the support of both the Principals' of Glenmore High School and Glenmore Primary School. 
We are all working together to solve our campus issues and have agreed on a scope of works. 

We believe that we have sufficient funds to complete this scope of works and look forward to your positive 
response so that we can commence the project as a matter of urgency 

As the P&C have had a strong interest in acquiring additional classroom spaces for students, and the QTU have a 
strong interest in achieving the provision of additional buildings I have included them into the application. 

Once again we have continued to grow in enrolments this year. I have attached a copy of our Day 8 enrolments 
which indicate that we have grown of around 300FTE. We now have a FTE teacher allocation of 117 with a total staff 

of more than 140. 

We have plans to develop additional teaching spaces in the mail room in the next couple of weeks to accommodate 

the additional staff. 

Kindest Regards 
Ian 

Ian Bielenberg 
Principal 
Capricornia School of Distance Education 
Rockhampton Campus 
07 4931 4823 
Emerald Campus 
07 49879112 
Mobile 

Follow CapricorniaSDE on Twitter 
Inspiring minds. Creating opportunities. Shaping Queensland's future. 
Please condiser the environment before printing this email. 

GAPRICORNIA 

This message (including attachments) is intended for the addressee named above. It may also be confidential, 
privileged and/or subject to copyright. If you wish to forward this message to others, you must first obtain the 
permission of the author. If you are not the addressee named above, you must not disseminate, copy, communicate 
or otherwise use or take any action in reliance on this message. You understand that any privilege or confidentiality 

1 
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attached to this message is not waived , lost or destroyed because you have received this message in error. If you 
have received this message in error please notify the sender and delete from any computer. Unless explicitly 
attributed, the opinions expressed in this message do not necessarily represent the official position or opinions of the 
State of Queensland or the Department of Education and the Arts. Whilst all care has been taken, the Department of 
Education and the Arts disclaims all liability for loss or damage to person or property arising from this message being 
infected by computer virus or other contamination. 

2 
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Department o f Educat ion 

Staffing Enrolment Collection 
Schools of Distance Education 

COLLECTION CLOSES 12 NOON ON COLLECTION DAY 
Day 8 Qn ~POJlttl prov1lles mfo1ma11on out lining the co\lectlon requireme nts Pnnopals need to b, fam1lar with the Day 8 Guidelines for Count mg ShJdents 

t#ihinil ~ 612 

Capr1corn1a School of Distance Education 

'----
1~11 collect ion for predict ed Day 20 enrolment s Final collect ion for Day 20 verified enrolments 

,Student Enrolment Counts 

I I 

~ARY _ _ _ _ _ _ _ -- _ _ _ - - _j 

and C Use "O" to 1nd1cate no enrolments or· where the school ,snot app,oved to offe, a year level or service compulsory LOTE program ___ _ 

Category 

PREP 
Vear Level 

Years 

01-03 

A 
Full-time Equivalent Count (FTE) 

Years 

a 

l Years 

04-06 
TOTAL 

Cata 

C 

Years Years 

01-03 04-06 

Subject Count 

Compulsory Primary LOTE 

TOTAL 

LOTE 

Please p,ov,de the school's secondary student enrolment numbers as student counts (SC) by year level g,oups w,th,n each category A, Band C, ,nd,cat1ng the fu ll time equivalent counts 

{FT[) ,rnd subJect count ptt1 student Include the total numbe, of subftct emolments for Year 8 compulsory LOH ,n year level group 07 10 by category The totals for subJect count 

student count (SC) ,1nd lull-tune equ1pmenl count (FTf) will be autonwcally calculated by year level groups and total catcrcory U!ie ·o to indicate no enrolments 01 where the school 1!. 

not app1 oved to oHer a ye-11 level 01 service 

Student Count (SC) 
Category 

B C A 

FTE Count 1 Subject Count Years Yea rs TOTAL Years Years TOTAL Years Years 

l 
TOTAL 

(FTE) Per Studen t 07-10 11-12 Cat A 07-10 11-12 Cat B 07-10 11-12 Cat C 

0.2 

L 
1 296 00 85 00 381.00 0.00 0 .00 o.oo 0.00 0 00 0.00 -

0,4 2 8 00 2.00 10.00 000 O 00 0.00 0 00 0 00 0.00 
0.6 3 000 

, oo 1 5.00 0.00 0 00 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 ----
0.8 4 0 00 0 00 o.oo 0 00 0 00 0.00 0.00 0 00 0 .00 
10 5 288 00 18000 468.00 0.00 0 00 0.00 0 00 000 o.oo 
1.0 6 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 00 000 0.00 0.00 000 I o.oo 
1.0 7 0 00 000 o.oo 0.00 0 00 0.00 000 0 00 0.00 r - -1 
1.0 8 000 000 0.00 000 0 00 0.00 000 0 00 0.00 
1.0 9 000 000 i 0.00 0.00 000 0.00 0 00 0 00 ~ 0.00 

1.0 10 0.00 0 00 0.00 0 .00 0 00 0.00 0 00 000 0.00 

TOTAL· SUBJECT COUNT m,~ ,oo,.ol 2756.00 0.00 0.00 

1 
0 .00 000 0.00 0.00 

TOTAL · STUDENT COUNT (SC) 592.00 272.00 864.00 0 00 000 o.oo 0 00 0.00 l 0.00 

TOTAL · FTE COUNT (FTE) r 350.40 200 so 551.20 0.00 0 .00 0.00 000 0.00 0.00 

' TAFE Enrolment Counts (Brisbane SOE Only) 

Please provide the school's TAFE en,ohnent numbe,s as full time equivalent counts IFTE) as known at the lime of the Day 20 Staff,ng Enrolment Colleet1on It ,s ,mportant to not e that 

these TAfE enrolment numbers are no1 used fa, the purpose of the 0epanment's school resource a\locat1on.s They are collected for a sepa,;ne purpose onbehalf of State Schools 

Operations mconsultat1011 w,th Perfo11nance Monitor mg and Reporting Bri\nrh Ahrr rhe rolleC11on any ;1d1ustments to these en,olment counts need to be discussed duectly with State 

School Ope1at1om 

Vear Level 

FTE Count (FTE) 

I 
I 

11 

0 00 

I 12 I TOTAL TAFE 

I I 0.00 

PRINCIPAL'S CERTIFICATION · 

I confum that the 1nfo1m.1t1on supplied on this form 1s complete and accurate The schoo\'5, student enrolment couna have been ve11f1ed M'ld 1econc1 ed wtth emolmen1~ and 

attendance ,eco,d?i, and support ng docu111entat1on hds been mamtamed 

Prlncipal's Name 

Day 8 Help Desk (Wo1lf01ce Resou rc1nc HR) 

hlephone (07) 3513 5900 
tma,1 D.iySHelpOe~l@)aeo qld gov ilu 

Ian B1elenberg Date 

SUBMIT 

7th o f February 2019 

f) Queensland 
Lovernr H•nl 
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I 
_::7 V 

( ,-re =-- 1, 

Capricornia (Emerald Campus) School of Distance Education t f,;0 - . 4' 'i'.t j.£_ 
Enrolment Summary Report / \ ~ 11,Rf 

(A signed copy of this report is to be kept on file at the school to meet Audit requirements) 

Low Year Level: PY High Year Level: 12 / tJ/ V 

L o-r~ .J 1z' 
All Students / 

Pre Prep Pri Sec Spe Total Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 ~ PU SU CJ CS 

FullTime 0 20 207 468 0 695 23 22 29 32 50 76 68 94 118 62 0 0 0 0 0 

PartTime 0 162 1747 396 0 2305 161 122 340 307 396 421 140 9 1 53 20 ~ 0 0 0 0 0 

Persons 0 182 1954 864 0 3000 184 144 369 339 443 475 1..290 _ 167 -~ 1l 4J ~ 0 0 0 0 0 

FTE 00 52 4 558 5 5512 00 11621 ~ l 936 12~--- 1385 j 780 ~ ~ 986 f;.!!.3 63 6..) 00 00 00 00 00 

199 ·f 3se -6 161 19·b £. 0 'o.r 1~{ 
~ 

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Students / f> 0 

Pre Prep Pri Sec Spe Total Year 1 Year 2 Year 3 Year 4 Year 5 Year 6 Year 7 Year 8 Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 PS PU SU CJ CS 

Full Time 0 1 10 74 0 85 1 1 1 3 3 1 3 10 10 13 20 18 0 0 0 0 0 

Part Time 0 29 228 38 0 295 30 13 57 39 50 39 11 6 7 .: 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Persons 0 30 238 11 2 0 380 31 14 58 4;1 53 40 1<: 16 17 17 30 18 0 0 0 0 0 

FTE 0 0 6 .8 556 826 00 1450 70 36 12.: 106 130 88 5 2 116 114 138 226 18 0 00 00 00 00 00 

I certify that the information above is an accurate account of enrolments at the school. 
I undl rstar\d that this information will be used to calculate the grant payment for the school. 

·,11\Cf,..,.s Si,!Oaf"ul.;~ .... ............... rq':' ...................... . 
Dc1te-r // I/. ~/4 ~ 0•i 

I' ~~I • • lP°"" 5 ./ / 11 

0 \ \ / f 
Wednesday, February 06. 2019 7:12:39 AM 

(•fli@I Ref • EmOCmf'ntSumnt;1ry I 1-Jh' ,._ 

If{) 

I b 1 
I 1, I 

"Qtfp~ 

~ ,,4- qi ______., G" 
( 

P.if/~,,//11¢ t/JfTF 
$gz 
;tf -L 
)0, 6 
11 -~~ 

~ ~ ~ / ~ Paq_e,i_ of 1 

(I l( Us;(ibi'el1 
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BIELENBERG, Ian (ibiel1) 

From: 
Sent: 

To: 
Subject: 

Yes ., 

M att Newell 

Principal 

Glcnmort State High School 
Department of Edll cat1on 

P: o· 1() 210 33'l 

E. mnewe15@eq.edu.au 

NEWELL, Matthew (mnewe15) <mnewe1 S@eq.edu.au> 
Tuesday, 5 February 2019 2:05 PM 
BIELENBERG, Ian (ibiel1 ) 

RE Addit ional Building behind S Block 

CNR Br uce Hwy a, d I arn1 '>t Rockha111pto11 No r th (ll D ,1701 

PO Box <;8?/ I Rrdhrll, Norrn;;n Garden\ ClLD 4701 

From: BIELENBERG, Ian (ibiell) <ibiel l@eq .edu.au> 

Sent: Tuesday, 5 February 2019 1:07 PM 

To: NEWELL, Matthew (mnewel S) <mnewe15@eq.edu.au> 
Subject: Rf : Addit ional Building behind S Block 

HI Mdtt 

/1.1 t' you ok ,1bout L 11do1 ~11\g tilt> c,c ope o f wu1 k~l 

Kind(·',\ Heg,11cl, 

cl II 

From: NEWELL, Matthew (mnewelS) <mnewel5@eq.edu .au> 
Sent: Tuesday, 5 February 2019 12:46 PM 

To: BIELENBERG, Ian (ibiell) <ib1ell@eq.edu.au> 

Subject: RE: Additiona l Building behind S Block 

l h,rnk<. Ian 

Thanks fo r in r lud111g uc, 111 th(> consultation 

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 14 of 37
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M att Newell 

Principal 

Glenmore State High School 
Department of Educa tion 

P; 07 49 230 333 

E: mnewe15@eq.edu.au 
CNR Bruce Hwy and rarm St I Rockhampt on North QLD 4 701 
PO Box 5822 I Redhill, Norman Ga,dens QL D 4701 

Please cons1de1 the env11 onment befo,e p11nting this email. 

From: BIELENBERG, Ian (ibiell) <1biel1@eq.edu.au> 
Sent: Tuesday, 5 February 2019 12:33 PM 
To: NEWELL, Matthew (mnewe15) <mnewe15@eq.edu.au> 
Subject: FW: Additional Building behind 5 Block 

H1 Matt, 
Thanks for dropping 111 today fo1 a chat Please fi nd attached an outline o f our proposed s<.ope o f works to provide 
additional teaching spaces and additional ca, pa rk spaces for all staff to access 

If you are able to endorsE this pr oposal that would be grec1 t as I believe that there are benefit s for all three sc hools 

Kindest Rega, ch 

Ian 

From: DUNLOP, Mark (mdunlS) <mc:ltlnl5@eq.edu.au> 
Sent: Tuesday, 5 February 2019 10:54 AM 
To: BIELENBERG, Ian (ibiell) <1l!1~ll@eq .ed11.2 t_1> 
Subject: RE: Additional Building behind S Block .. .,,,,,,,, ' 
I hc1d 111tP11t1r n'> o f ratrhi 11g up yPc,te, clay I am suppo, t1ve o the proposc1I Al<,o, Just 11ot111r,, tl•nt the ln11ld 111P will lw 
1•1 t he v1t1111ty o f our play d i ens <,o tlwrP w il l be t lw 1101<,P of k1ch play111g at break t1111e<, 

Rega rd s 

Mark Dunlop I PRINCIPAi 
Gle1111101 e 5S Ouc1llty I et1111111g 111 .i Ccir 111g r 111,11or11rn- 111 

21.11 259 r ar 11, ~I Rockharnpton Nor th ,170 I 

p 49230666 1149230600 
V1s1t our website at. https.//glenmoress.eq.edu au 

Ou,1hty L, am nq 
Ou tc,t <1 nd1n9 Fu t u, t s 

2 
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This message (including attachments) is intended for the addressee named above It may also be confidential, 
privileged and/or subject to copyright If you wish to forward this message to others, you must first obtain the 
permission of the author. If you are not the addressee named above, you must not disseminate, copy, communicate 
or otherwise use or take any action in reliance on this message. You understand that any privilege or confidentiality 
attached to this message Is not waived lost or destroyed because you have received this message in error If you 
have received this message In error please notify the sender and delete from any computer Unless explicitly 
attributed, the opinions expressed in this message do not necessarily represent the official position or opinions of the 
State of Queensland or the Department of Education and the Arts. Whilst all care has been taken, the Department of 
Education and the Arts disclaims al l l1abil1ty for loss or damage to person or property arising from this message being 
infected by computer virus or other contamInalton 

From: BIELENBERG, Ian (ibiell) <ibiell@eg.edu.au> 
Sent: Tuesday, 5 February 2019 9:21 AM 
To: DU NLOP, Mark (mdunl5) <mdunl5@eg.edu.au> 
Subject : Additional Building behind S Block 

Good Morning Mark, 
As discussed last week I would j ust like to outline our plans, for your endorsement, to place a Fleetwood 
Demount able building down behind your "S" Block. 

• Over the past few yea rs we have experienced significant enrolment growth with our numbers currently 

sitting in excess of 1150 FTE and 3050 Head Count. We have grown by more than 300FTE since our last 
allocation of physica l building and resources which came from Glenmore Primary School. 

• This solut ion provides us with additional resources without impacting on Glenmore Primary School facilities. 

• As part of this additional development we plan to construct a covered wa lk way connecting the Oval Carpark 
with the stairs next to K Block. 

• This will be completed in two stages with the concrete path being constructed first and the overhead shelter 
being added as soon as funds become available. 

• Quotes will be obtained for the whole project up front and if affordable we will complete the project in one 
action 

• In addition to the covered walk way, we wi ll provide road base to the carpark to allow for all weather access. 
The surface will be a product similar to crusher dust. 

• The development of this car park will significantly reduce the pressure on the Mike Mahar car park and 
reduce the traffic on Farm Street at critical times. 

• We w ill also provide landscaping in the area between buildings 51,41 and 44. 

• In addition to this proj ect we will ask our consultants to draw up plans for the redevelopment of the toilet 
block, building 20, in a fashion similar to what has been done at Berserker Street State School. 

• It is our intention to apply for funding under the "SSS" program to complete t his project. 

• I sincerely hope that this project meets with your endorsement as it will improve the services to all three 
school sites and significantly improve our facilities. 

• Should you be supportive of our development application could you please respond with your 
endorsement? 

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
Please cond1ser the environment before printing this email 

~ / 

CAPRICORNIA 

This message (including attachments) Is intended for the addressee named above It may also be conf1dent1al 
privileged and/or subject to copyright If you wish to forward this message to others you must first obtain the 
permission of the author If you are not the addressee named above you must not disseminate copy communicate 
or otherwise use or take any action In reliance on this message You understand that any privilege or confldent1al1ty 
attached to this message Is not waived lost or destroyed because you have received this message 111 error If you 
have received this message in error please notify the sender and delete from any computer Unless exphc1lly 
attributed t11e opinions expressed In this message do not necessarily represent the official posItIon or opInIons of the 
State of Quee1 island or the Departrne11t of Education and the Arts Whilst all care has been taken the Department of 
Education and the Arts d1scla1ms all liab1lity for loss or damage to person or property cinsing from tt11s message being 
infected t1y computer v1nIg or other contamination 
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Siting Approval Application - Minor Building Works 
(submit to your Regional Infrastructure Advisor) 

School Name: Capncornia School of Distance Education 

Project description: 
Fleetwood Modular Classroom as per SOA 

Estimate of cost of proJect S 500,000 l S l Quotation attached (please-~ 

2 Documentation as listed below Is enclosed 

/ Request from school. signed by the principal 
/ This form S1t111g Approval Application 

~.tJ. 4 . 

.,, School Site Plan (A4 size) showing School '\Jame and Street f-rontages 
An enla1ged Site Plan (All size) with measurements from adjoining structures (fc·nccs l>Lritlll CJ' P\C) 

•J Wntter1 · · 

Certifi cation 

I certify that tile 1nformauon given 111 this application Is co1rect arid all co11cl1t1ons wrll be cor plied with 
I certify that the school have under taken ci consultatron process wrth ne1ghbounnq prope, ties ,n relation to 

this proiect (1f applicable£_!)(,, 

·,;:·;::,:::,:"'"' ~ftm-k jt1,/J,ie/ M bt!IJ l{,,(1 · I/ 

Approval - to be completed by the Infrastructure Advisor 

The above appllcat1011 has been assessed 111 accordance with departniental reouil ernents . 
D S1t1ng spproval Is given Proceed with your proiect 
n S1t1ng ar:iproval Is given Please prepare B1i ilrlirig Act Comp mnce, Appl1cr1tior1 for 'odge111e11t wrth private 
cert1frer or burldtng surveyor 

Mrnin1um Documentation r~ired. 
D IDAS Form 1 & 2 Form 15 
D As-to-be· const1 ucted Drawings 
D Structural Design Certificate oriqinnl 
D This Sil.ng 8pf)rovc1I applicrition 

D Further Rssessment required Please pr ov1de the following documer ,tat1on 

Assessment Olfrcer 

Re ,onal lnfro~l!uc.lurc /\dv15Cir 

Date 

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 18 of 37

R
el

ea
se

d 
un

de
r R

TI
 A

ct
 b

y 
D

oE



2' ~ -

26 057~-CA.1• 

27 0574-CA 1-

28 057.d-CAI-

30 057'-CA l 

3, 0574-CAl 

37 0574-CA 1 

3 3 0574-CA1 

057.d-CA 1 

057A-CA1 

0574-CA 1 

0574-CA1 

0574-CA 1 

0574-CA 1 

0574-CA 1 

0574-CA1 

0574-GA 1 

0574-CA1 

0574-CA 1 

0574-CA.1 

0574-CA1 

057.._CA1 

0574-CAl 

0574-CA1 

0574-CA1 

057"'--Cl-1 

0574-CA1 

0574-CAl 

0574-CAl 

0574-GA1 

057.t-CA1 

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 19 of 37

Release
d under R

TI A
ct 

by D
oE



<s~~.UV"J 
)!, ••. .,. I-C.-01.1 ~ 

"'-' A. 

4- • A .. > ' 
• ,. . 

,,.. 

"',,~ 
f .l,1 .. , ► \.A.-i1'i 

·•01 
,(,,·,AI 

• 
~iA ,,. 

.•. 

1.4Ul T • r~, Ji.1t"l!')S~ r .OlJPT S 

VA, 

.>Vf- 1Hr ~Rf:.,, ~f•~IC,• 

<'F RC.,Ol;. ':IL 

PF n('';[ ..J. fllr)Ck 

CJVE-R('[, Cl>[;. ,UNIQi: 

Pl=R(,n,,._ • Al ()("I, 

nus ,;H[ TP 

ppr....r, S►if A'f·•~ .. -rr:R,, st:-;r-
-'Pf. ; ' Ut,;1r 

"Ri.:p 1,t~·;• 

~ . ,A, 

!-,4-CAI 

,,.,ADf- STRUC TUP[ Pl?l P 1 l9J 

,tV-0( ':TPUCT JPf 40 

T<A- - A.~ 

.CJ.A!~ ,p 

Ol 'X,•· 

OVE'Pf.[> Al?! Ail~ SKFT'l,\ 

RlOCk 

')!, ....... •-c..os•; "1.AV(.POIJNI) DP'-P AP[ .. 

>!,1•·•- A 1 <$ 1~H P()IH<, SHfr 

l4, ~ 1-.<,,-00(JF i,. U 

1• lA •. ' _. ,.t,,OOOS SLOC>< 

'0~.Pl 

'>!,; •. ,AI~·~""' P.A:',K[ TIJ"l- .;ou•n SMALL COVERED 

'Y.,7 .. ,.,.e,--0r._<;.1 U •AOE S'-ll Pflf:P : f. :' !,J 

',,& 1',;4 . .A 1-!'.-0NOO C:0\/EP(O AP~A PPt:µ t q,C1''l 

ss tY;"• ,. • r~oooo C OVEREU AREA l'Pf-P l .. .,(),..-,. 

56 'l.c.,7,e .. A.•.c,,...~t,K,• ";!S>[.Hf: 1 

57 

~ 

59 

I\C 

'1' 

'!~ •• ., 

i5, , ... 

'l!,14, 

HAC1f- <;T"vC iUP• s RI OCK 15,1 

VA1.J 

P<!fP 51-1[0 II lli..'lCI' 

OV[REO ,un-. PFRGOLA I.I BLOC~ 

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 20 of 37

Release
d under R

TI A
ct 

by D
oE



Glenmore State School (0574) 

'nlJ"l 

:::wc,-r.o ,UH-:.-. ,w,,<>" 
'fPC"-0....- f St.DC~ 

~~ct·-r...11 
Pl1[P $H[:) V.\_JITfilN SJ:)f 

PMfP,uMT 

P".f'" L·'• 

~ 

1."""X .:\. !J!.JCTL•P( • l'P.[r • p,; 
:.-•aoc. :.r~ucru~L ,, A,01 

D'u.>C.• 
Ail-' rOV[Uf r.t.111tfA fl .t.~,-fTPA.J.. COlJDT 

1,a • ~ ' )CJ 

A <....OSS'. "1.A'JC"Af)\..•,"") 11'1£ P .&Pf a 

~:stw£0 

OUX• 

1&.0C►; 

'>5"•·· .At,$,C.APP CA:.IQ.fBALLCCU•JT S""""l CO\rl:.RF:D 

067L _.At.f",.,o.&G-,1 Ct◄AOO ~41L J'Fl t-P ' & 1,s1, 

7.&,c.A,.&,.t,J.io,g C OVFJ:JHJ,Utf'"PP t.- • ,:,tO'"' .. 

(1674..(.-. ~ C.ovt."[0.AltfA ,-i,,f f' '1 JJIC:t-Jl 

O'P&.. .&· ~~ !ICP&1[ 

OUL.... . .-, . ..-~ JM•Dfl '\'!DUCTL;II!' •'\l!l()Ol.'57'1 

C")7.a ~ Al.(...o:...A.I >YA: J 

.,,,. • .,. ••• WMPJ •nr,.aHt.OHO...OCK 

01"' r ,.41 r...,r .lPA r.'')',l(Pf.0 ""°E.A P[PC()V.M BU)C..._ 

Data Up dated by DET- ISB School Mapping Teum. 9 Nov 2017 ·. lm.iges supphed by DNRM 11nd1.:r SISP Lrwncc 

I 
I 

I 
I 

I 

I 

I 
j 

I 

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 21 of 37

Release
d under R

TI A
ct 

by D
oE



"'O
 

o· 
0 ~ 
.,J

 
Q

) 
Q

) 

u
. 

. . . 

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 22 of 37

Release
d under R

TI A
ct 

by D
oE



.. (j) 

(i) 
' 

(D 

) 

~.-..--.... --·~·-............... ~,.---

-----

"'O
t Ii' 

O
ir ~! 

0 3 
,+,,,I 
Cl) 
Cl) 

u
. 

:I. 

-
-
-
-
-

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 23 of 37

Release
d under R

TI A
ct 

by D
oE



;I 

f 
l; 

~ 
e' 

~ I 
i-

I 
9 ~ 

I 
f; 
II~

 

]
,,11,, 

0 
I 

IC
 

~ 
~
 

(l) 
(l) 

.. 
LL. 

:l. 

~
 

~
 

. 
q, 

t 

!; 
. ~

 . 
J 

, 

. 
j 

'i 

t 
~ • 

• : t!~ 
~ ~-

1 ' ' 

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 24 of 37

Release
d under R

TI A
ct 

by D
oE



' a 

n 

:i 
I ,~ ·i L ,. 

r . ~ I 
• 

l 

;, 
~ 

J 
I l II 

1ij.lil1 
J 1 .. 
t r ., } f J i l I ; 

I 
I 

d
, 

t 
I 

o 

··----~ . ..-.. .. ,.----............ _ -
• 

T
 

'I I 

r ~ ; ~
 

J ~
 

: l' 
I 

I 

l j 
I 

,1
1

 
I 

• 
I 

I I 

I ll!illl I 
u 

. ~ i l 
I 

1111 
• 

t 

. I 

I~ 

I,· a. " 
i~ 

I!' 
I I, 

,: it 
•• 

; ~ D
 

w
 

r ii 
C

. 

~ 
5 

t~
 

~::' r 

"O
 !;II 

O
!j' l· 

o· 
, 

3 
,+,,J 
C

l) 
C

l) 

u.. 
•I 

I 
. . . 

~
 

L
 

:., 

~ p ~
 . L

 ·-J! :1 ,, f ' I I 

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 25 of 37

Release
d under R

TI A
ct 

by D
oE



! 
. 

I~ 

~ ~ 

',: 
i! 

~ ~ 

"'00 !JIii I 1 

,,. ! 
o· 

. 
~ 

+
,J

 
(l.) 
(l.) 

u
. 

■, 
I 

' 
. . 

l 
9 

I 

' h 
I I 

h 

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 26 of 37

Release
d under R

TI A
ct 

by D
oE



.. ,
_

.
.
.
.
_

 ... _
, -

·
·
·
 -•----h

flllM
.1

1
1

-..... ' . i-
11 

i 
I 

~
 

h h 
i 

• 
' 

t 
a~ 

~~ 
,:

r 
t

t 
: ' H

 
. " 
I
f
 f 

~
 

:, 

~ ; . s 
~
 

~ " 
~· 

t 
ll":! 
w

 l'i 
t 

"O,.,q 
0

1i 
d 

0 
I 

I 

~ 
,+,,J 
C

l) 
C

l) 

u.. 
: t. ~
~
 

:i~ 
' JI 

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 27 of 37

Release
d under R

TI A
ct 

by D
oE



, 
r;; 

•
i 

r---_ 
-
-
-
-
-
-
,
 I 

J I : . 
I 

"O! ,.,. 
0

•; 
I 

O
' 

. 

~ 
+

,J 
(1) 
(1) 

u
. 

:I. 

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 28 of 37

Release
d under R

TI A
ct 

by D
oE



I I 

I 
~-

1 

f ... r
-
-

I I I I 

. i l 
H

 
"fa" 

• 

~
 

' 

&.•---

ti 
' ; .. 

,: 

~ 
/!, 

, ! 
t. t i 
, 

C
 i 

t 
, i 

~ 
~
 

; 
! " 

I !ii 

f 
\ f 

ii 
Iv I 

I 
a 

I 

H
 

w
 

• 
C

g 

I
~

 ii 

:
;
 

•• : 1 

u
. 

: , . 

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 29 of 37

Release
d under R

TI A
ct 

by D
oE



:
1

 
I 

. 
; 

.. 

! r. 

. •---i..._-=
-

................. ~
 .......... _ 

.,...... ....... 

.!llil 

I 
I 

I 1· a-

. . ~ p 

~ 
~ . 
t; t ~ 

! ~ 
:, 

' 
C

 
, 

I! 

:I. 

I 
I 

,, 
I ,l' 

RTI Application 213655 - File A - Document 30 of 37

Release
d under R

TI A
ct 

by D
oE



RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6) 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Hi Amanda 

DREDGE, Graham <Graham.DREDGE@qed.qld.gov.au > 
Tuesday, 17 August 2021 9:05 AM 
RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6); BELL, Greg 
RE: Capricornia School of Distance Education - Rockhampton EMR 

I will follow up as the application was discussed last week. 

Will let yourself and Bill know. 

Regards 

Graham 

Queensland 
Government 

Graham Dredge 
Executive Director, Infrastructure Operations 
Infrastructure Services 
Department of Education 

P: 07 303 44871 IM: I E: graham.dredge@qed.qld.gov.au I 
Level 171 42 Albert Street I Brisbane QLD 4000 
PO Box 15033 I City East QLD 4002 

Inspiring minds. Creating opportunities. Shaping Queensland's future. 
Please consider the environment before printing this email. 

From: RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6) <arynn6@eq.edu.au> 

Sent: Tuesday, 17 August 2021 8:34 AM 
To: DREDGE, Graham <Graham.DREDGE@qed.qld.gov.au>; BELL, Greg <Greg.BELL@qed.qld.gov.au> 

Subject: Capricornia Schoo l of Distance Education - Rockhampton EMR 

Dear Graham and Greg, 

I am contacting you in relation t o the EMR for Capricornia School of Distance Education- Rockhampton Campus. 
am acutely aware that the end of Term 3 is fast approaching. The EMR was submitted in May 2021 and it has now 

been over 3 months since the initial submission. 

Bill McMillan advised that the response to this EMR is still being considered and that he will let me know when there 

is a definitive answer. 

Would you be able to provide any further information as to the progress of this request as the staff and school 

community are starting to reapply pressure despite being repeatedly asked for patience in this matter. 

Kind regards, 

Amanda Rynne 
Principal 
Capricornia School of Distance Education 

P.S. "I am not always at my desk and only check my email 3-4 times per day. If urgent please contact our main office numbers lis ted below. " 
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241-259 Farm Street, Kawana QLD 4701 
T: {07) 49314800 @ Rockhampton Campus 
T: {07) 4987 9100 @ Emerald Campus 
Capricornia School of Distance Education 

241-259 Farm Street, Kawana QLD 4701 
E: arynn6@eq.edu.au 
W: https://capricorniasde.eq.edu.au/ 

& ~ 
CAPRICORNIA 
~-JA.1-u.-,,;_ 

This message (including attachments) is intended for the addressee named above. It may also be confidential, privileged and/or subject to copyright. If you wish 
to forward this message to others, you must first obtain the permission of the author. If you are not the addressee named above, you must not disseminate, 
copy, communicate or otherwise use or take any action in reliance on this message. You understand that any privilege or confidentiality attached to this 
message is not waived, lost or destroyed because you have received this message in error. If you have received this message in error please notify the sender 
and delete from any computer. Unless explicitly attributed, the opinions expressed in this message do not necessarily represent the official position or opinions 
of the State of Queensland or the Department of Education and the Arts. Whilst all care has been taken, the Department of Education and the Arts disclaims all 
liability for loss or damage to person or property arising from this message being infected by computer virus or other contamination. 

From: RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6) 
Sent: Friday, 18 June 2021 8:09 AM 
To: 'Graham.DREDGE@qed.qld.gov.au' <Graham.DREDGE@qed.qld.gov.au>; 'Greg.BELL@qed.qld.gov.au' 

<Greg.BELL@qed.qld.gov.au> 
Subject: Capricornia School of Distance Education - Rockhampton EMR 

Dear Graham and Greg, 

Many thanks for taking time out of your busy schedules to visit CSDE Rockhampton Campus on the 3rd of June 2021. 
Post visit I was wondering if there was any further discussions or decisions on the EMR for the Campus that you are 

in a position to share? 

Kind regards, 
Amanda Rynne 
Principal 
Capricornia School of Distance Education 

P.S. 11
/ am not always at my desk and only check my email 3-4 times per day. If your matter requires my urgent 

attention, please contact me directly on " 

241-259 Farm Street , Kawana QLD 4701 
T: {07)4931 4843 @ Rockhampton Campus 
T: {07) 4987 9112 @ Emerald Campus 

Mobile

Capricornia School of Distance Education 
241-259 Farm Street, Kawana QLD 4701 T: {07)49314843 I F: 07 49314899 E: arynn6@eq.edu.au 

W: https://capricorniasde.eq.edu.au/ 
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& -
CAPRICORNIA 

This message (including attachments) is intended for the addressee named above. It may also be confidential, privileged and/or subject to copyright. If you wish 
to forward this message to others, you must first obtain the permission of the author. If you are not the addressee named above, you must not disseminate, 
copy, communicate or otherwise use or take any act ion in reliance on this message. You understand that any privilege or confidentiality attached to this 
message is not waived, lost or destroyed because you have received this message in error. If you have received this message in error please notify the sender 
and delete from any computer. Unless explicitly attributed, the opinions expressed in t his message do not necessarily represent the official position or opinions 
of the State of Queensland or the Department of Education and the Arts. Whilst all care has been taken, the Department of Education and the Arts disclaims all 
liability for loss or damage to person or property arising from th is message being infected by computer virus or other contamination. 

*********************************************************************************************** 
**** 

IMPORTANT: This email and any attachments may contain legally privileged, confidential or private information, and 
may be protected by copyright. You may only use or disclose this information if you are the intended recipient(s) 
and if you use it in an authorised way. No other person is allowed to use, review, alter, transmit, disclose, distribute, 
print or copy this email and any attachments without appropriate authorisation. 

If you are not the intended recipient(s) and the email was sent to you by mistake, please notify the sender 
immediately by return email or phone, destroy any hardcopies of this email and any attachments and delete it from 
your system. Any legal privilege and confidentiality attached to this email is not waived or destroyed by that 

mistake. 

The Department of Education carries out monitoring, scanning and blocking of emails and attachments sent from or 
to addresses within the Department of Education for the purposes of operating, protecting, maintaining and 
ensuring appropriate use of its computer network. It is your responsibility to ensure that this email does not contain 
and is not affected by computer viruses, defects or interference by third parties or replication problems (including 
incompatibility with your computer system). 

The Department of Education does not accept any responsibility for any loss or damage that may result from 
reliance on, or the use of, any information contained in the email and any attachments. 

*********************************************************************************************** 
**** 
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RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6) 

From: 
Sent: 

MCMILLAN, Bill <Bill.MCMILLAN@qed.qld.gov.au> 
Monday, 9 August 2021 3:33 PM 

To: RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6) 

Subject: RE: EM R - Rockhampton Campus information for P&C Meeting 10 August 2021 

G'day Amanda, 
The response to this EMR is still being considered. I will let you know when there is a definitive answer. 

Kind Regards 

Bill McMillan BGovtPubMgmt 
Infrastructure Manager 

Infrastructure Services/ Central Queensland Region 

Department of Education 

P: 07 4932 4032 
M: 
E: bill.mcmillan@ged.gld.gov.au 
Level 4 I 209 Bolsover Street I Rockhampton QLD 4700 
PO Box 138 I Rockhampton QLD 4700 

Working together to lift learning and skilling outcomes for Queensland. 
Please consider the environment before printing this email. 

In CQ, we're going to 

A 'ti I C, E, I • 

Stay Connected: Visit the new CQ Hub 

From: RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6) <arynn6@eq.edu.au> 
Sent: Monday, 9 August 20219:01 AM 
To: MCMILLAN, Bill <Bill.MCMILLAN@qed.qld.gov.au> 

Queensland 
Government 

Subject: EMR - Rockhampton Campus information for P&C Meeting 10 August 2021 

Dear Bill, 

I' m hoping I can please have some information to provide to the P&C for the upcoming meeting on Tuesday 10th 

August in relation to the EMR submitted for Rockhampton Campus. 

Look forward to hearing from you. 

Kind regards, 
Amanda Rynne 
Principal 
Capricornia School of Distance Education 

P.S. "I am not always at my desk and only check my email 3-4 times per day. If urgent please contact our main office numbers listed below." 

241-259 Farm Street, Kawana QLD 4701 
T: (07) 4931 4800 @ Rockhampton Campus 
T: (07) 4987 9100 @ Emerald Campus 
Capricornia School of Distance Education 

241-259 Farm Street, Kawana QLD 4701 
E: arynn6@eq.edu.au 
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& ~~~ 
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
Cc: 
Subject: 
Attachments: 

Good Afternoon Amanda, 

MCMILLAN, Bill <Bill.MCMILLAN@qed.qld.gov.au> 
Monday, 11 February 2019 2:27 PM 
RYNNE, Amanda (arynn6) 
FREDERICKS, Kim; ibeil1@eq.edu.au; NEATON, Michael 
Capricornia School of Distance Education - Additional Teacher Accommodation 
18 402740 Capricornia School of Distance Education - 2019 Emergent Minimum 
Requirement.DOC 

As discussed at this morn ing's meeting the attached 2019 Emergent Minimum Requirement for the Capricornia 
School of Distance Education requesting additional teaching space at the Rockhampton Campus has been declined. 

If you anticipate that this requirement will still exist following the realignment of teaching resources with an 
emphasis on providing services mainly from the main campus at Emerald please resubmit an updated application 

requesting additional teaching spaces at Emerald. 

Kind Regards 

Bill McMillan 
Infrastruct ure Manager 

Rockhampton Office/Infrastructure Services 
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

I. 
I Queensland 

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
may be protected by copyright. You may on ly use or disclose this information if you are the intended recipient(s) 
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
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1 Introduction 
QBuild has been appointed to undertake preliminary investigations, on behalf of the Department of 
Education (DoE) into planned works at the Capricornia School of Distance Education (SODE). Based 
on the brief ing information as provided by DoE, the purpose of this report is to investigate the 
proposal for a new student accommodation centre and other associated works.  

The Capricornia SODE Emerald Campus is located on the corner of Gray and Gladstone Streets, 
Emerald which is formally known as Lot 1 on CP902896. 

The intention of this report is to assist in identifying whether the Project involves development, 
whether the Project constitutes a Material Change of Use (MCU), and what obligations arise under 
the Planning Act 2016 in relation to development.  

This report will detail risks and constraints relating to development and nominate additional studies or 
reports required for the proposal, either to inform design, prior to the commencement of works, or 
following as a consequence of development. 

This report includes the following components: 

• An overview of the site details and parameters;

• Description of the proposed works; 
• Identif ication of potential environmental constraints affecting the site associated with relevant 

State Government legislation and confirmation of relevant requirements to address recognised
issues; and

• Identif ication of relevant planning scheme provisions affecting the site, including the area
classification/ zone, applicable overlays and confirmation of relevant requirements to address 
recognised issues;

• An assessment will be given on whether planning approval is required. The relevant provisions in
the local government’s planning scheme will be outlined. 

In support of this report are the following Appendix documents: 

• Appendix 1 – Property Information
• Appendix 2 – SPP Mapping

• Appendix 3 – Council Property Report

• Appendix 4 – Environmental Reporting and Mapping
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2 Subject details 
2.1 Site context 
Site summary 
Street address Corner Gray and Gladstone Streets, Emerald 

Real property description Lot 1 on CP902896 

Site area 5.8ha 

Registered owner State of Queensland (represented by Department of Education) 

Tenure Freehold 

Easements and Encumbrances The title search and survey (refer Appendix 1) indicate that 
there is no easements or lease interests affecting the lots. 

Adjoining land use/s The site is adjoined by residential uses to the north, south east 
and west.  

Surrounding land use/s The area is surrounded the township of Emerald 

Community Designation 
Inf rastructure  

The site is not currently designated for community 
inf rastructure. 

Inf rastructure The Capricornia SODE is located on the south side of Emerald, 
with access to urban services including sewer, water, 
stormwater, electricity and telecommunications infrastructure. 
The location of service infrastructure can be checked by 
completing a Dial Before You Dig (DYBD) search. 

Where development involves ground disturbance, the internal 
alignment of plumbing / drainage and other service conduits 
should be ascertained from building records and considered as 
part of the development planning and design. Where the 
change of use involves an intensification of the load on 
services, services capacity should be investigated as part of 
planning and design to ensure that the additional services load 
can be accommodated or determine upgrade requirements 
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Figure 1 – Site 1 Aerial 

Legend Source: DSDMIP SARA 

Site Boundary 
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3 Proposal Details 
Capricornia SDE is currently unable to use The Outstation and The Shed facilities for overnight 
accommodation due to fire safety and building classification issues. 

3.1 Student population and projected growth 
Given the unique nature of operations at the Capricornia SDE, the proposal is not considered a 
growth project as the school does not have full time students in attendance on campus.  
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4 Relevant planning provisions 
The following town planning information provides an overview of relevant State and Local planning 
matters and applicable legislation.  

4.1 Regional Plan 
Regional Plan Information 

Regional Plan N/A 

Land Use Category N/A 

Refer to Appendix 2 for relevant mapping. 

4.2 State Planning Policies 
SPP State interests Applicability 
Planning for liveable communities and housing 

Liveable communities N 

Housing supply and diversity N 

Planning for economic growth 

Agriculture N 

Development and construction N 

Mining and extractive resources N 

Tourism N 

Planning for the environment and heritage 

Biodiversity N 

Coastal environment N 

Cultural heritage N 

Water quality Y 

Planning for natural hazards, risk and resilience 

Emissions and hazardous activities N 

Natural hazards, risk and resilience Y 

Planning for infrastructure 

Energy and water supply N 

Inf rastructure integration N 

Transport infrastructure N 

Strategic airports and aviation facilities Y 

Strategic ports N 

Refer to Appendix 2 for relevant mapping. 
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4.3 Planning Regulation 2017 
Assessment triggered by Planning Regulation 
Schedule 6 Part 3(8) Operational work by or for a public sector entity is accepted development 

where the entity is authorised under a state law to carry out the work.  

Schedule 7 Part 1(2) Building work by or for the State or a public sector entity is accepted 
development. 

Schedule 10 Development Assessment Applicability 

Part 1 Airport land N 

Part 2 Brothels N 

Part 3 Clearing native vegetation N 

Part 4 Contaminated land N 

Part 5 Environmentally relevant activities N 

Part 6 Fisheries N 

Part 7 Hazardous chemical facilities N 

Part 8 Heritage places N 

Part 9 Inf rastructure-related referrals N 

Part 10 Koala habitat area N 

Part 11 Noise sensitive place on noise attenuation land N 

Part 12 Operational work for reconfiguring a lot N 

Part 13 Ports N 

Part 14 Reconfiguring a lot under Land Title Act N 

Part 15 SEQ development area N 

Part 16 SEQ regional landscape and rural production 
area and SEQ rural living area 

N 

Part 17 Tidal works or work in a coastal management 
district  

N 

Part 18 Urban design N 

Part 19 Water-related development N 

Part 20 Wetland protection area N 

Part 21 Wind farms N 
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4.4 Local Government Planning 
Planning Scheme Information 
Planning scheme Central Highlands Regional Council Planning Scheme 

Zoning Community Facilities Zone 

Local area plan N/A 

Overlays Airport Environs 

• OM001 Light Restriction Zone

• OM001 6km radius from the Emerald Airport

Bushf ire Hazard 

• Class: Potential Impact Buffer

Flood Hazards 

• OM005 Queensland Floodplain Assessment
Overlay Mapping (State)

• OM005 Modelled Flood Hazard Levels (Urban)

• OM005 Modelled Flood Hazard Levels (Regional)

Existing Land Use Educational establishment means the use of premises for— 
a) training and instruction to impart knowledge and develop skills; or
b) student accommodation, before or after school care, or vacation

care, if the use is ancillary to the use in paragraph (a)

Proposed Use Educational Establishment 

Inf rastructure 
Designation: 

The site is not currently designated for community infrastructure. 

4.5 Environmental 
Mapping undertaken for the site, and included in the Environmental Checklist Report in Appendix 3 
notes the site:  

• Koala habitat: The site is not located within the South East Queensland Koala Protection Area w
• Regulated vegetation: The site is not mapped as containing regulated (Category X only) or

remnant vegetation of concern under the Vegetation Management Act 1999.
• Protected plants: The site is not located within a high-risk area for protected plants under

the Nature Conservation Act 1992.
• Referable wetlands: The site is not within a Wetland Protection Area or affected by HES or GES 

Wetland).
• Coastal hazard: The site is not in an erosion prone area, storm tide inundation area or coastal

management district.

An Environmental Checklist Report has been undertaken to identify environmental approval and 
management requirements for the project and should be reviewed in conjunction with this report. This 
report is included on Appendix 4.  
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4.6 Other Legislation 
4.6.1 Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003 – Duty of Care 
In accordance with the Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003, s28 duty of care requirements, the 
developer is required to identify reasonable and practicable measures for ensuring activities are 
managed to avoid Aboriginal cultural heritage. With reference to the Environmental Checklist Report 
and Management Plan in Appendix 3, section 5.2 states: 

The proposed development is to be located within an area subject to previous clearing. Therefore, the 
nature of  the activity is likely to be classified as ‘area previously subject to significant disturbance’ – 
Category 4, under the Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003, Section 28 Duty of Care Guidelines. 
Subject to measures set out in paragraph 5.6-5.12 under Category 4 of the Duty of Care Guidelines, 
the proposed activates can proceed without further cultural heritage assessment.  

It should be noted that any Aboriginal cultural heritage, if found, is protected under the terms of the 
Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003 even if Department of Environment and Science (DES) has no 
record relating to it. Contract documents should include provisions for works to cease and the relevant 
Aboriginal Party to be contacted if evidence of Aboriginal cultural heritage is encountered during site 
works. This is included as a standard requirement in the environmental requirements specification 
prepared by the Environmental Unit 

4.6.2 Environmental Protection and Natural Resource Management 
The Client and all members of the project team have a “General Environmental Duty” under Section 
319 of  the Environmental Protection Act 1994. The General Environmental Duty makes it an offence 
under the Act to carry out any activity that causes, or is likely to cause, environmental harm unless all 
reasonable and practical measures have been taken to prevent or minimise the potential harm. 

To minimise environmental harm, it is necessary to assess what environmental conditions exist on-
site and to identify potential environmental impacts of the proposed development. It is recommended 
that full environmental due diligence is carried out to ensure project compliance. 

Environmental due diligence should inform preparation of a project Environmental Management Plan.  
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5 Material Change of Use determinations 
Under the Planning Act 2016, a material change of use of premises, means any of the following— 

• the start of a new use of the premises;

• the re-establishment on the premises of a use that has been abandoned;

• a material increases in the intensity or scale of the use of the premises.
The below table assesses the proposed development against the above criteria to determine whether 
a material change of use is occurring over the site.  

Applicability 
Commencement of a New Use N 

Re-establishing an Abandoned Use N 

Material Increase in Intensity and Scale of Existing Lawful Use Y 

5.1 Determination 
The Project constitutes a material change of use (MCU), being a material increase in scale and 
intensity. This is based on the following: 

• New accommodation hub with a gross floor area of approximately 50-100m2

This determination was also confirmed by Central Highlands Regional Council.
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• Contour and Detail Survey Plan;

• Landscape Plan
• Traf f ic Impact Assessment

• Site Based Stormwater Management Plan;

• Flood Assessment
• Geotechnical Investigation; 

• Bushf ire Management Plan

• Arborist advice where tree clearing required; and

• Services Advice (sewer, water, electrical, telecommunications).
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9 Appendices 
The following is a list of appendices to this Site Investigation Report: 

Appendix 1 Property Information 
Appendix 2 SPP Mapping 
Appendix 3 Council Property Report 
Appendix 4 Environmental Report and Mapping 
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Appendix 1 – Property Information 
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INTERNAL CURRENT TITLE SEARCH
DEPARTMENT OF RESOURCES, QUEENSLAND

Search Date: 14/04/2021 12:42 Title Reference: 50452326
Date Created: 18/08/2003

Previous Title: 40038624

REGISTERED OWNER

Dealing No: 713705801  09/02/2011

THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND
(REPRESENTED BY DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION)

ESTATE AND LAND

 Estate in Fee Simple

 LOT 1 CROWN PLAN 902896
Local Government: CENTRAL HIGHLANDS

EASEMENTS, ENCUMBRANCES AND INTERESTS

1. Rights and interests reserved to the Crown by
Deed of Grant No. 40038624 (Lot 1 on CP 902896)

2. EASEMENT IN GROSS No 713760951  16/03/2011 at 11:42
burdening the land
ERGON ENERGY CORPORATION LIMITED A.C.N. 087 646 062
over
EASEMENT A ON SP235855
Lodged at 11:42 on 16/03/2011 Recorded at 14:15 on 16/03/2011

ADMINISTRATIVE ADVICES - NIL
UNREGISTERED DEALINGS  - NIL

Corrections have occurred - Refer to Historical Search

Caution - Charges do not necessarily appear in order of priority

** End of Current Title Search **

COPYRIGHT THE STATE OF QUEENSLAND (DEPARTMENT OF RESOURCES) [2021]
Page 1/1
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Appendix 2 – SPP Mapping 
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Date: 14/04/2021

¢
State Planning Policy 

Making or amending a local planning instrument 
and designating land for community infrastructure

Disclaimer:
This map has been prepared with due care based on the best available information at the time of publication. However, the State of Queensland 
(acting through the department) makes no representations, either express or implied, that the map is free from errors, inconsistencies or 
omissions. Reliance on information contained in this map is the sole responsibility of the user. The State disclaims responsibility for any loss, 
damage or inconven ence caused as a result of re iance on information or data con ained in this map.
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(acting through the department) makes no representations, either express or implied, that the map is free from errors, inconsistencies or 
omissions. Reliance on information contained in this map is the sole responsibility of the user. The State disclaims responsibility for any loss, 
damage or inconvenience caused as a result of reliance on information or data contained in this map.
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

© The State of Queensland 2021.

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
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Appendix 3 – Council Property Report 
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Appendix 4 – Environmental Report and Mapping 
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This publication has been compiled by Operations Support, Department of Resources.

© State of Queensland, (2021)

The Queensland Government supports and encourages the dissemination and exchange of its information. The copyright in
this publication is licensed under a Creative Commons - Attribution 4.0 International (CC BY) licence.

Under this licence you are free, without having to seek our permission, to use this publication in accordance with the licence
terms.

You must keep intact the copyright notice and attribute the State of Queensland as the source of the publication.

Note: Some content in this publication may have different licence terms as indicated.

For more information on this licence, visit https://creativecommons.org/licenses/by/4.0/

The information contained herein is subject to change without notice. The Queensland Government shall not be liable for
technical or other errors or omissions contained herein. The reader/user accepts all risks and responsibility for losses,
damages, costs and other consequences resulting directly or indirectly from using this information.
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Recent changes

Updated mapping
Updated vegetation mapping was released on 6 April 2020 and includes the most recent Queensland Herbarium scientific
updates to the Regulated Vegetation Management Map, regional ecosystems, wetland, high-value regrowth and essential
habitat mapping.

Improvements to the format of the report were made in July 2020 to more clearly delineate the three regulatory frameworks of
vegetation management, protected plants and koala habitat protection. The Vegetation Management Pre-clear Regional
Ecosystem map was also removed from the Vegetation Management Report but can still be requested as a separate map.

Overview

Based on the lot on plan details you have supplied, this report provides the following detailed information:
Property details - information about the specified Lot on Plan, lot size, local government area, bioregion(s), subregion(s) and
catchment(s);

Vegetation management framework - an explanation of the application of the framework and contact details for the
Department of Resources who administer the framework;

Vegetation management framework details for the specified Lot on Plan including:
• the vegetation management categories on the property;
• the vegetation management regional ecosystems on the property;
• vegetation management watercourses or drainage features on the property;
• vegetation management wetlands on the property;
• vegetation management essential habitat on the property;
• whether any area management plans are associated with the property;
• whether the property is coastal or non-coastal; and
• whether the property is mapped as Agricultural Land Class A or B;

Protected plant framework - an explanation of the application of the framework and contact details for the Department of
Environment and Science who administer the framework, including:

• high risk areas on the protected plant flora survey trigger map for the property;

Koala protection framework - an explanation of the application of the framework and contact details for the Department of
Environment and Science who administer the framework; and

Koala protection framework details for the specified Lot on Plan including:
• the koala district the property is located in;
• koala priority areas on the property;
• core and locally refined koala habitat areas on the property;
• whether the lot is located in an identified koala broad-hectare area; and
• koala habitat regional ecosystems on the property for core koala habitat areas.

This information will assist you to determine your options for managing vegetation under:
- the vegetation management framework, which may include:

• exempt clearing work;
• accepted development vegetation clearing code;
• an area management plan;
• a development approval;

- the protected plant framework, which may include:
• the need to undertake a flora survey;
• exempt clearing;
• a protected plant clearing permit;

- the koala protection framework, which may include:
• exempted development;
• a development approval;
• the need to undertake clearing sequentially and in the presence of a koala spotter.
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Other laws

The clearing of native vegetation is regulated by both Queensland and Australian legislation, and some local governments
also regulate native vegetation clearing. You may need to obtain an approval or permit under another Act, such as the
Commonwealth Government's Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EPBC Act). Section 8 of this
guide provides contact details of other agencies you should confirm requirements with, before commencing vegetation
clearing.
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1. Property details

1.1 Tenure and title area

All of the lot, plan, tenure and title area information associated with property Lot: 1 Plan: CP902896, are listed in Table 1.
Table 1: Lot, plan, tenure and title area information for the property

Lot Plan Tenure Property title area (sq metres)

1 CP902896 Freehold 58,970

A SP235855 Easement 24

The tenure of the land may affect whether clearing is considered exempt clearing work or may be carried out under an
accepted development vegetation clearing code.

1.2 Property location

Table 2 provides a summary of the locations for property Lot: 1 Plan: CP902896, in relation to natural and administrative
boundaries.
Table 2: Property location details

Local Government(s)

Central Highlands Regional

Bioregion(s) Subregion(s)

Brigalow Belt Isaac - Comet
Downs

Catchment(s)

Fitzroy
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2. Vegetation management framework (administered by the Department
of Resources)

The Vegetation Management Act 1999 (VMA), the Vegetation Management Regulation 2012, the Planning Act 2016 and the
Planning Regulation 2017, in conjunction with associated policies and codes, form the Vegetation Management Framework.

The VMA does not apply to all land tenures or vegetation types. State forests, national parks, forest reserves and some
tenures under the Forestry Act 1959 and Nature Conservation Act 1992 are not regulated by the VMA. Managing or clearing
vegetation on these tenures may require approvals under these laws.

The following native vegetation is not regulated under the VMA but may require permit(s) under other laws:
• grass or non-woody herbage;
• a plant within a grassland regional ecosystem prescribed under Schedule 5 of the Vegetation Management
Regulation 2012; and
• a mangrove.

2.1 Exempt clearing work

Exempt clearing work is an activity for which you do not need to notify the Department of Resources or obtain an approval
under the vegetation management framework. Exempt clearing work was previously known as exemptions.

In areas that are mapped as Category X (white in colour) on the regulated vegetation management map (see section 4.1),
and where the land tenure is freehold, indigenous land and leasehold land for agriculture and grazing purposes, the clearing
of vegetation is considered exempt clearing work and does not require notification or development approval under the
vegetation management framework. For all other land tenures, contact the Department of Resources before commencing
clearing to ensure that the proposed activity is exempt clearing work.

A range of routine property management activities are considered exempt clearing work. A list of exempt clearing work is
available at
https://www.qld.gov.au/environment/land/vegetation/exemptions/.

Exempt clearing work may be affected if the proposed clearing area is subject to development approval conditions, a
covenant, an environmental offset, an exchange area, a restoration notice, or an area mapped as Category A. Exempt
clearing work may require approval under other Commonwealth, State or Local Government laws, or local government
planning schemes. Contact the Department of Resources prior to clearing in any of these areas.

2.2 Accepted development vegetation clearing codes

Some clearing activities can be undertaken under an accepted development vegetation clearing code. The codes can be
downloaded at
https://www.qld.gov.au/environment/land/vegetation/codes/

If you intend to clear vegetation under an accepted development vegetation clearing code, you must notify the Department of
Resources before commencing. The information in this report will assist you to complete the online notification form.

You can complete the online form at
https://apps.dnrm.qld.gov.au/vegetation/
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2.3 Area management plans

Area Management Plans (AMP) provide an alternative approval system for vegetation clearing under the vegetation
management framework. They list the purposes and clearing conditions that have been approved for the areas covered by
the plan. It is not necessary to use an AMP, even when an AMP applies to your property.

On 8 March 2020, AMPs ended for fodder harvesting, managing thickened vegetation and managing encroachment. New
notifications cannot be made for these AMPs. You will need to consider options for fodder harvesting, managing thickened
vegetation or encroachment under a relevant accepted development vegetation clearing code or apply for a development
approval.

New notifications can be made for all other AMPs. These will continue to apply until their nominated end date.

If an Area Management Plan applies to your property for which you can make a new notification, it will be listed in Section 3.6
of this report. Before clearing under one of these AMPs, you must first notify the Department of Resources and then follow
the conditions and requirements listed in the AMP.
https://www.qld.gov.au/environment/land/vegetation/area-plans/

2.4 Development approvals

If under the vegetation management framework your proposed clearing is not exempt clearing work, or is not permitted under
an accepted development vegetation clearing code, or an AMP, you may be able to apply for a development approval.
Information on how to apply for a development approval is available at
https://www.qld.gov.au/environment/land/management/vegetation/development

2.5. Contact information for the Department of Resources

For further information on the vegetation management framework:
Phone 135VEG (135 834)
Email vegetation@resources.qld.gov.au
Visit https://www.dnrme.qld.gov.au/?contact=vegetation to submit an online enquiry.

RTI Application 213655 - File B - Document 98 of 118

R
el

ea
se

d 
un

de
r R

TI
 A

ct
 b

y 
D

oE



Page 9Vegetation management report, Department of Resources, 2021

3. Vegetation management framework for Lot: 1 Plan: CP902896

3.1 Vegetation categories

The vegetation categories on your property are shown on the regulated vegetation management map in section 4.1 of this
report. A summary of vegetation categories on the subject lot are listed in Table 3. Descriptions for these categories are
shown in Table 4.

Table 3: Vegetation categories for subject property. Total area: 5.89ha

Vegetation category Area (ha)

Category X 5.9

Table 4: Description of vegetation categories

Category Colour on Map Description Requirements / options under the
vegetation management
framework

A red Compliance areas, environmental
offset areas and voluntary
declaration areas

Special conditions apply to Category
A areas. Before clearing, contact the
Department of Resources to confirm
any requirements in a Category A
area.

B dark blue Remnant vegetation areas Exempt clearing work, or notification
and compliance with accepted
development vegetation clearing
codes, area management plans or
development approval.

C light blue High-value regrowth areas Exempt clearing work, or notification
and compliance with managing
Category C regrowth vegetation
accepted development vegetation
clearing code.

R yellow Regrowth within 50m of a
watercourse or drainage feature in
the Great Barrier Reef catchment
areas

Exempt clearing work, or notification
and compliance with managing
Category R regrowth accepted
development vegetation clearing
code or area management plans.

X white Clearing on freehold land,
indigenous land and leasehold land
for agriculture and grazing purposes
is considered exempt clearing work
under the vegetation management
framework. Contact the Department
of Resources to clarify whether a
development approval is required for
other State land tenures.

No permit or notification required on
freehold land, indigenous land and
leasehold land for agriculture and
grazing. A development approval
may be required for some State land
tenures.

Property Map of Assessable Vegetation (PMAV)

There is no Property Map of Assessable Vegetation (PMAV) present on this property.
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3.2 Regional ecosystems

The endangered, of concern and least concern regional ecosystems on your property are shown on the vegetation
management supporting map in section 4.2 and are listed in Table 5.

A description of regional ecosystems can be accessed online at
https://www.qld.gov.au/environment/plants-animals/plants/ecosystems/descriptions/

Table 5: Regional ecosystems present on subject property

Regional Ecosystem VMA Status Category Area (Ha) Short Description Structure Category

non-rem None X 5.89 None None

Please note:
1. All area and area derived figures included in this table have been calculated via reprojecting relevant spatial features to Albers equal-area conic projection
(central meridian = 146, datum Geocentric Datum of Australia 1994). As a result, area figures may differ slightly if calculated for the same features using a
different co-ordinate system.

2. If Table 5 contains a Category 'plant', please be aware that this refers to 'plantations' such as forestry, and these areas are considered non-remnant under
the VMA.

The VMA status of the regional ecosystem (whether it is endangered, of concern or least concern) also determines if any of
the following are applicable:

• exempt clearing work;
• accepted development vegetation clearing codes;
• performance outcomes in State Code 16 of the State Development Assessment Provisions (SDAP).

3.3 Watercourses

Vegetation management watercourses and drainage features for this property are shown on the vegetation management
supporting map in section 4.2.

3.4 Wetlands

There are no vegetation management wetlands present on this property.

3.5 Essential habitat

Under the VMA, essential habitat for protected wildlife is native wildlife prescribed under the Nature Conservation Act 1992
(NCA) as critically endangered, endangered, vulnerable or near-threatened wildlife.

Essential habitat for protected wildlife includes suitable habitat on the lot, or where a species has been known to occur up to
1.1 kilometres from a lot on which there is assessable vegetation. These important habitat areas are protected under the
VMA.

Any essential habitat on this property will be shown as blue hatching on the vegetation supporting map in section 4.2.

If essential habitat is identified on the lot, information about the protected wildlife species is provided in Table 6 below. The
numeric labels on the vegetation management supporting map can be cross referenced with Table 6 to outline the essential
habitat factors for that particular species. There may be essential habitat for more than one species on each lot, and areas of
Category A, Category B and Category C can be mapped as Essential Habitat.

Essential habitat is compiled from a combination of species habitat models and buffered species records. Regional
ecosystem is a mandatory essential habitat factor, unless otherwise stated. Essential habitat, for protected wildlife, means an
area of vegetation shown on the Regulated Vegetation Management Map -

1) that has at least 3 essential habitat factors for the protected wildlife that must include any essential habitat factors
that are stated as mandatory for the protected wildlife in the essential habitat database. Essential habitat factors are
comprised of - regional ecosystem (mandatory for most species), vegetation community, altitude, soils, position in
landscape; or
2) in which the protected wildlife, at any stage of its life cycle, is located.
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If there is no essential habitat mapping shown on the vegetation management supporting map for this lot, and there is no
table in the sections below, it confirms that there is no essential habitat on the lot.

Category A and/or Category B and/or Category C

Table 6: Essential habitat in Category A and/or Category B and/or Category C

No records

3.6 Area Management Plan(s)

Nil

3.7 Coastal or non-coastal

For the purposes of the accepted development vegetation clearing codes and State Code 16 of the State
Development Assessment Provisions (SDAP), this property is regarded as*

Non Coastal

*See also Map 4.3

3.8 Agricultural Land Class A or B

The following can be used to identify Agricultural Land Class A or B areas under the "Managing regulated regrowth
vegetation" accepted development vegetation clearing code:
Does this lot contain land that is mapped as Agricultural Land Class A or B in the State Planning Interactive Mapping
System?

No Class A

No Class B

Note - This confirms Agricultural Land Classes as per the State Planning Interactive Mapping System only. This response
does not include Agricultural Land Classes identified under local government planning schemes. For further information,
check the Planning Scheme for your local government area.

See Map 4.4 to identify the location and extent of Class A and/or Class B Agricultural land on Lot: 1 Plan: CP902896.
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4. Vegetation management framework maps

Vegetation management maps included in this report may also be requested individually at:
https://www.dnrme.qld.gov.au/qld/environment/land/vegetation/vegetation-map-request-form

Regulated vegetation management map
The regulated vegetation management map shows vegetation categories needed to determine clearing requirements. These
maps are updated monthly to show new property maps of assessable vegetation (PMAV).

Vegetation management supporting map
The vegetation management supporting map provides information on regional ecosystems, wetlands, watercourses and
essential habitat.

Coastal/non-coastal map
The coastal/non-coastal map confirms whether the lot, or which parts of the lot, are considered coastal or non-coastal for the
purposes of the accepted development vegetation clearing codes and State Code 16 of the State Development Assessment
Provisions (SDAP).

Agricultural Land Class A or B as per State Planning Policy: State Interest for Agriculture
The Agricultural Land Class map confirms the location and extent of land mapped as Agricultural Land Classes A or B as
identified on the State Planning Interactive Mapping System. Please note that this map does not include areas identified as
Agricultural Land Class A or B in local government planning schemes. This map can be used to identify Agricultural Land
Class A or B areas under the "Managing regulated regrowth vegetation" accepted development vegetation clearing code.
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5. Protected plants framework (administered by the Department of
Environment and Science (DES))

In Queensland, all plants that are native to Australia are protected plants under the Nature Conservation Act 1992 (NCA). The
NCA regulates the clearing of protected plants 'in the wild' (see Operational policy: When a protected plant in Queensland is
considered to be 'in the wild') that are listed as critically endangered, endangered, vulnerable or near threatened under the
Act.

Please note that the protected plant clearing framework applies irrespective of the classification of the vegetation under the
Vegetation Management Act 1999 and any approval or exemptions given under another Act, for example, the Vegetation
Management Act 1999 or Planning Regulation 2017.

5.1 Clearing in high risk areas on the flora survey trigger map

The flora survey trigger map identifies high-risk areas for endangered, vulnerable or near threatened (EVNT) plants. These
are areas where EVNT plants are known to exist or are likely to exist based on the habitat present. The flora survey trigger
map for this property is provided in section 5.5.

If you are proposing to clear an area shown as high risk on the flora survey trigger map, a flora survey of the clearing impact
area must be undertaken by a suitably qualified person in accordance with the Flora survey guidelines. The main objective of
a flora survey is to locate any EVNT plants that may be present in the clearing impact area.

If the flora survey identifies that EVNT plants are not present within the clearing impact area or clearing within 100m of EVNT
plants can be avoided, the clearing activity is exempt from a permit. An exempt clearing notification form must be submitted to
the Department of Environment and Science, with a copy of the flora survey report, at least one week prior to clearing.

If the flora survey identifies that EVNT plants are present in, or within 100m of, the area to be cleared, a clearing permit is
required before any clearing is undertaken. The flora survey report, as well as an impact management report, must be
submitted with the clearing permit application form.

5.2 Clearing outside high risk areas on the flora survey trigger map

In an area other than a high risk area, a clearing permit is only required where a person is, or becomes aware that EVNT
plants are present in, or within 100m of, the area to be cleared. You must keep a copy of the flora survey trigger map for the
area subject to clearing for five years from the day the clearing starts. If you do not clear within the 12 month period that the
flora survey trigger map was printed, you need to print and check a new flora survey trigger map.

5.3 Exemptions

Many activities are 'exempt' under the protected plant clearing framework, which means that clearing of native plants that are
in the wild can be undertaken for these activities with no need for a flora survey or a protected plant clearing permit. The
Information sheet - General exemptions for the take of protected plants provides some of these exemptions.

Some exemptions under the NCA are the same as exempt clearing work (formerly known as exemptions) under the
Vegetation Management Act 1999 (i.e. listed in Schedule 21 of the Planning Regulations 2017) while some are different.

5.4 Contact information for DES

For further information on the protected plants framework:
Phone 1300 130 372 (and select option four)
Email palm@des.qld.gov.au
Visit https://www.qld.gov.au/environment/plants-animals/plants/protected-plants
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5.5 Protected plants flora survey trigger map

This map included may also be requested individually at: https://apps.des.qld.gov.au/map-request/flora-survey-trigger/.

Updates to the data informing the flora survey trigger map
The flora survey trigger map will be reviewed, and updated if necessary, at least every 12 months to ensure the map reflects
the most up-to-date and accurate data available.

Species information
Please note that flora survey trigger maps do not identify species associated with 'high risk areas'. While some species
information may be publicly available, for example via the Queensland Spatial Catalogue, the Department of Environment
and Science does not provide species information on request. Regardless of whether species information is available for a
particular high risk area, clearing plants in a high risk area may require a flora survey and/or clearing permit. Please see the
Department of Environment and Science webpage on the clearing of protected plants for more information.
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6. Koala protection framework (administered by the Department of
Environment and Science (DES))

The koala (Phascolarctos cinereus) is listed in Queensland as vulnerable by the Queensland Government under Nature
Conservation Act 1992 and by the Australian Government under the Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation
Act 1999.

The Queensland Government's koala protection framework is comprised of the Nature Conservation Act 1992, the Nature
Conservation (Animals) Regulation 2020, the Nature Conservation (Koala) Conservation Plan 2017, the Planning Act 2016
and the Planning Regulation 2017.

6.1 Koala mapping

6.1.1 Koala districts
The parts of Queensland where koalas are known to occur has been divided into three koala districts - koala district A, koala
district B and koala district C. Each koala district is made up of areas with comparable koala populations (e.g. density, extent
and significance of threatening processes affecting the population) which require similar management regimes.
Section 7.1 identifies which koala district your property is located in.

6.1.2 Koala habitat areas
Koala habitat areas are areas of vegetation that have been determined to contain koala habitat that is essential for the
conservation of a viable koala population in the wild based on the combination of habitat suitability and biophysical variables
with known relationships to koala habitat (e.g. landcover, soil, terrain, climate and ground water). In order to protect this
important koala habitat, clearing controls have been introduced into the Planning Regulation 2017 for development in koala
habitat areas.

Please note that koala habitat areas only exist in koala district A which is the South East Queensland "Shaping SEQ"
Regional Plan area. These areas include the local government areas of Brisbane, Gold Coast, Logan, Lockyer Valley,
Ipswich, Moreton Bay, Noosa, Redland, Scenic Rim, Somerset, Sunshine Coast and Toowoomba (urban extent).

There are two different categories of koala habitat area (core koala habitat area and locally refined koala habitat), which have
been determined using two different methodologies. These methodologies are described in the document Spatial modelling in
South East Queensland.

Section 7.2 shows any koala habitat area that exists on your property.

Under the Nature Conservation (Koala) Conservation Plan 2017, an owner of land (or a person acting on the owner's behalf
with written consent) can request to make, amend or revoke a koala habitat area determination if they believe, on reasonable
grounds, that the existing determination for all or part of their property is incorrect.

More information on requests to make, amend or revoke a koala habitat area determination can be found in the document
Guideline - Requests to make, amend or revoke a koala habitat area determination.

The koala habitat area map will be updated at least annually to include any koala habitat areas that have been made,
amended or revoked.

Changes to the koala habitat area map which occur between annual updates because of a request to make, amend or revoke
a koala habitat area determination can be viewed on the register of approved requests to make, amend or revoke a koala
habitat area available at: https://environment.des.qld.gov.au/wildlife/animals/living-with/koalas/mapping/koalamaps. The
register includes the lot on plan for the change, the date the decision was made and the map issued to the landholder that
shows areas determined to be koala habitat areas.

6.1.3 Koala priority areas
Koala priority areas are large, connected areas that have been determined to have the highest likelihood of achieving
conservation outcomes for koalas based on the combination of habitat suitability, biophysical variables with known
relationships to koala habitat (e.g. landcover, soil, terrain, climate and ground water) and a koala conservation cost benefit
analysis.

Conservation efforts will be prioritised in these areas to ensure the conservation of viable koala populations in the wild
including a focus on management (e.g. habitat protection, habitat restoration and threat mitigation) and monitoring. This
includes a prohibition on clearing in koala habitat areas that are in koala priority areas under the Planning Regulation 2017
(subject to some exemptions).

Please note that koala priority areas only exist in koala district A which is the South East Queensland "Shaping SEQ"
Regional Plan area. These areas include the local government areas of Brisbane, Gold Coast, Logan, Lockyer Valley,
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Ipswich, Moreton Bay, Noosa, Redland, Scenic Rim, Somerset, Sunshine Coast and Toowoomba (urban extent).

Section 7.2 identifies if your property is in a koala priority area.

6.1.4 Identified koala broad-hectare areas
There are seven identified koala broad-hectare areas in SEQ. These are areas of koala habitat that are located in areas
committed to meet development targets in the SEQ Regional Plan to accommodate SEQ's growing population including
bring-forward Greenfield sites under the Queensland Housing Affordability Strategy and declared master planned areas
under the repealed Sustainable Planning Act 2009 and the repealed Integrated Planning Act 1997.

Specific assessment benchmarks apply to development applications for development proposed in identified koala
broad-hectare areas to ensure koala conservation measures are incorporated into the proposed development.

Section 7.2 identifies if your property is in an identified koala broad-hectare area.

6.2 Koala habitat planning controls

On 7 February 2020, the Queensland Government introduced new planning controls to the Planning Regulation 2017 to
strengthen the protection of koala habitat in South East Queensland (i.e. koala district A).

More information on these planning controls can be found here:
https://environment.des.qld.gov.au/wildlife/animals/living-with/koalas/mapping/legislation-policy.

As a high-level summary, the koala habitat planning controls make:
• development that involves interfering with koala habitat (defined below) in an area that is both a koala priority area
and a koala habitat area, prohibited development (i.e. development for which a development application cannot be
made);
• development that involves interfering with koala habitat (defined below) in an area that is a koala habitat area but is
not a koala priority area, assessable development (i.e. development for which development approval is required); and
• development that is for extractive industries where the development involves interfering with koala habitat (defined
below) in an area that is both a koala habitat area and a key resource area, assessable development (i.e. development
for which development approval is required).

Interfering with koala habitat means:
1) Removing, cutting down, ringbarking, pushing over, poisoning or destroying in anyway, including by burning,
flooding or draining native vegetation in a koala habitat area; but
2) Does not include destroying standing vegetation stock or lopping a tree.

However, these planning controls do not apply if the development is exempted development as defined in Schedule 24 of the
Planning Regulation 2017. More information on exempted development can be found here:
https://environment.des.qld.gov.au/wildlife/animals/living-with/koalas/mapping/legislation-policy.

There are also assessment benchmarks that apply to development applications for:
- building works, operational works, material change of use or reconfiguration of a lot where:

• the local government planning scheme makes the development assessable;
• the premises includes an area that is both a koala priority area and a koala habitat area; and
• the development does not involve interfering with koala habitat (defined above); and

- development in identified koala broad-hectare areas.

The Guideline - Assessment Benchmarks in relation to Koala Habitat in South East Queensland assessment benchmarks
outlines these assessment benchmarks, the intent of these assessment benchmarks and advice on how proposed
development may meet these assessment benchmarks.
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6.3 Koala Conservation Plan clearing requirements

Section 10 and 11 of the Nature Conservation (Koala) Conservation Plan 2017 prescribes requirements that must be met
when clearing koala habitat in koala district A and koala district B.

These clearing requirements are independent to the koala habitat planning controls introduced into the Planning Regulation
2017, which means they must be complied with irrespective of any approvals or exemptions offered under other legislation.

Unlike the clearing controls prescribed in the Planning Regulation 2017 that are to protect koala habitat, the clearing
requirements prescribed in the Nature Conservation (Koala) Conservation Plan 2017 are in place to prevent the injury or
death of koalas when koala habitat is being cleared.

6.4 Contact information for DES

For further information on the koala protection framework:
Phone 13 QGOV (13 74 68)
Email koala.assessment@des.qld.gov.au
Visit https://environment.des.qld.gov.au/wildlife/animals/living-with/koalas/mapping

7. Koala protection framework details for Lot: 1 Plan: CP902896

7.1 Koala districts

Koala District C
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8. Other relevant legislation contacts list

Activity Legislation Agency Contact details

• Interference with overland flow

• Earthworks, significant

disturbance

Water Act 2000

Soil Conservation Act 1986

Department of Regional

Development, Manufacturing and

Water

(Queensland Government)

Department of Resources

(Queensland Government)

Ph: 13 QGOV (13 74 68)

www.dnrme.qld.gov.au

• Indigenous Cultural Heritage Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act

2003

Torres Strait Islander Cultural

Heritage Act 2003

Department of Seniors, Disability

Services and Aboriginal and Torres

Strait Islander Partnerships

Ph: 13 QGOV (13 74 68)

www.datsip.qld.gov.au

• Mining and environmentally

relevant activities

• Infrastructure development

(coastal)

• Heritage issues

Environmental Protection Act 1994

Coastal Protection and

Management Act 1995

Queensland Heritage Act 1992

Department of Environment and

Science

(Queensland Government)

Ph: 13 QGOV (13 74 68)

www.des.qld.gov.au

• Protected plants and protected

areas

Nature Conservation Act 1992 Department of Environment and

Science

(Queensland Government)

Ph: 1300 130 372 (option 4)

palm@des.qld.gov.au

www.environment.gov.au

• Koala mapping and regulations Nature Conservation Act 1992 Department of Environment and

Science

(Queensland Government)

Ph: 13 QGOV (13 74 68)

Koala.assessment@des.qld.gov.au

• Interference with fish passage in a

watercourse, mangroves

• Forestry activities on State land

tenures

Fisheries Act 1994

Forestry Act 1959

Department of Agriculture and

Fisheries

(Queensland Government)

Ph: 13 QGOV (13 74 68)

www.daf.qld.gov.au

• Matters of National Environmental

Significance including listed

threatened species and ecological

communities

Environment Protection and

Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999

Department of Agriculture, Water

and the Environment

(Australian Government)

Ph: 1800 803 772

www.environment.gov.au

• Development and planning

processes

Planning Act 2016

State Development and Public

Works Organisation Act 1971

Department of State Development,

Infrastructure, Local Government

and Planning

(Queensland Government)

Ph: 13 QGOV (13 74 68)

www.dsdmip.qld.gov.au

• Local government requirements Local Government Act 2009

Planning Act 2016

Department of State Development,

Infrastructure, Local Government

and Planning

(Queensland Government)

Ph: 13 QGOV (13 74 68)

Your relevant local government

office

• Harvesting timber in the Wet

Tropics of Qld World Heritage area

Wet Tropics World Heritage

Protection and Management Act

1993

Wet Tropics Management Authority Ph: (07) 4241 0500

www.wettropics.gov.au
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Page 3

Vegetation Management Act 1999 - Extract from the essential habitat database
Essential habitat is required for assessment under the:

• State Development Assessment Provisions - State Code 16: Native vegetation clearing which sets out the matters of interest to the state for development assessment under the Planning Act 2016;
and

• Accepted development vegetation clearing codes made under the Vegetation Management Act 1999

Essential habitat for one or more of the following species is found on and within 1.1 km of the identified subject lot/s on the accompanying essential habitat map.

This report identifies essential habitat in Category A, B and Category C areas.

The numeric labels on the essential habitat map can be cross referenced with the database below to determine which essential habitat factors might exist for a particular species.

Essential habitat is compiled from a combination of species habitat models and buffered species records.

The Department of Resources website (http://www.dnrme qld.gov au) has more information on how the layer is applied under the State Development Assessment Provisions - State Code 16: Native vegetation
clearing and the Vegetation Management Act 1999.

Regional ecosystem is a mandatory essential habitat factor, unless otherwise stated.

Essential habitat, for protected wildlife, means a category A area, a category B area or category C area shown on the regulated vegetation management map-

1) that has at least 3 essential habitat factors for the protected wildlife that must include any essential habitat factors that are stated as mandatory for the protected wildlife in the essential habitat
database; or

2) in which the protected wildlife, at any stage of its life cycle, is located.

Protected wildlife includes critically endangered, endangered, vulnerable or near-threatened native wildlife prescribed under the Nature Conservation Act 1992.

Essential habitat in Category A and/or Category B and/or Category C

No records
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